ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 11, 2013
5:04 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Coghill, Chair
Senator Lesil McQuire, Vice Chair
Senator Fred Dyson

Senat or Donald d son

Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
SENATE BI LL NO. 49
"An Act defining 'nedically necessary abortion' for purposes of
maki ng paynments under the state Medicaid program”
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 49

SHORT TITLE: MEDI CAl D PAYMENT FOR ABORTI ONS; TERMS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) COGHI LL

02/ 11/ 13 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 11/ 13 (S) JUD, FIN

02/ 15/ 13 (S) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED- REFERRAL S
02/ 15/ 13 (S) JUD, FIN

02/ 27/ 13 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 27/ 13 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 27/ 13 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 04/ 13 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 04/ 13 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 04/ 13 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 05/ 13 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 05/ 13 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 05/ 13 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/11/13 (S) JUD AT 5:00 PM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 11, 2013



LYNN ECOLA, representing herself
Pet ersburg, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to

KEN SI NEE (ph), representing hinself
Ket chi kan, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

RACHAEL G ERHART, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to

PAT CHAMBERS, representing herself
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

ALI CI A MARRI OTT, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to

WLLIAM COX, MD., representing hinself
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to

LYNETTE PHI LLIPS, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

AMY WALKER, representing herself
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB

CAREN ROBI NSON, Lobbyi st

Al aska Wnen's Lobby

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to

LANCE ROBERTS, representing hinself

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB
DI ANA CONWAY, representing herself

Hal i but Cove, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to

KATE FI NN, representing herself

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2-

SB 49.

49.

SB 49.

49.

SB 49.

SB 49.

49.

49.

SB 49.

49.

SB 49.

March 11,

2013



Hormer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 49.

KAREN LEW S, representing herself
Mat Su, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 49.

DYLAN ROBERTSON, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 49.

PAI GE HODSON, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 49.

ED GOANS, representing hinself
Sol dot na, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 49.

RAMONA DUBY, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in strong opposition to SB 49.

JEFFREY M TTMAN, Executive Director

ACLU of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered to answer questions, and rem nded
the commttee that the ACLU had submtted both witten and ora
testinmony stating opposition to SB 49.

PAT MARTI N, representing hinself
Wasi |l a, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 49.

COLLEEN MURPHY, M D., representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 49.

ALBERT JUDSON, representing hinself

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 49.
JOYANNE BLOOM representing herself

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 49.

DOUG MCKINNI' S representing hinself

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 11, 2013



Wasi |l a, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 49.

KATHLEEN TONN, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 49.

JODI E DOM NGUEZ, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 49.

KI NDEE LESLI E, representing herself
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 49.

ALI CI A MJSI AL, representing herself
Wasi |l a, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 49.

KEI TH KURBER, representing hinself
Bi g Lake, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 49.

JESSE RCSS, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in full support of SB 49.

PETER NOX, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 49.

JAN DELAND, QOperation Qutcry
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 49.

DEBRA BORLLI NI, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 49.

PAMELA MARSCH, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 49.

DEE LONGENBAUGH, representing herself

Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 49.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 11,

2013



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

5:04: 44 PM

CHAIR JOHAN COGH LL called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 5:04 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Welechowski, MQ@ire, Dyson, dson, and
Chair Coghill.

SB  49- MEDI CAl D PAYMENT FOR ABORTI ONS; TERMS

5:05: 04 PM

CHAIR COGHI LL announced the consideration of SSSB 49. Noting
that this was the fourth hearing, he stated the intention this
evening was to take public testinony.

SENATOR MCGQUI RE asked for answers to the foll ow ng questions:

1. How are Alaska's adoption statutes working, who is in
charge at the state l|level, and how are adoptions working
for I ow income wonmren who do not want to keep the child they
are carrying?

2. Are intermission nurseries still available for young
nothers to take their babies when they need relief?

3. What are the qualifications for Head Start and what would
it take to expand the progranf

SENATOR DYSON relayed that his experience was that there were
far nore couples |ooking for children than children available to
adopt .

CHAIR COGHI LL rem nded the committee that the bill is narrowy
focused on when a procedure is paid for as nedically necessary
and when is it elective. He agreed it would be appropriate to
hear from the DHSS conm ssi oner.

5:13: 59 PM

LYNN ECOLA, representing herself, described herself as a back-
all ey abortionist who was put out of business by Roe v. Wade. SB
49 wll restore that <client base, particularly the nost
vul nerabl e of those clients, poor Al askan wonen. She highlighted
that this nmedical judgnment legislation was akin to that found in
Chi na and Paki st an.

5:16: 02 PM
KEN SI NEE (ph), representing hinself, spoke in support of SB 49.
He said he doesn't believe in abortion at all, and those that

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 11, 2013



are not nedically necessary definitely should not be covered by
Medi cai d or taxpayer dollars.

5:17:49 PM

RACHAEL G ERHART, representing herself, urged the conmttee to
oppose SB 49. She said she works with people with severe nenta
health disorders and they sonetines need abortions. She
respectfully pointed out that this should not be a political
decision. Abortion is never an easy option, but it is inportant
to respect wonmen enough to allow them to decide for thenselves.
To do otherw se takes away neaningful independence. Instead of
reducing access to a valid and safe nedical procedure, she
suggested reducing abortions overall by educating citizens on
preventi on.

5:20: 55 PM
PAT CHAMBERS, representing herself, said she was testifying in
support of SB 49. She said it is norally right to set a high

bar, particularly when it comes to killing innocent, defenseless
babi es. She suggested the commttee not worry about people who
cry about not being able to kill babies.

5:21: 44 PM

ALI CI A MARRI OIT, representing herself, spoke in opposition to SB
49. She said she has traveled extensively throughout the state
and is always amazed that the lifestyle that some may consider
hardship is seen by others as everyday |ife. However, a comon
thread in struggling communities is that many people lack the
financial, enotional, mnedical or other resources necessary for
their wellbeing. Noting the exceptions for rape and incest, she
of fered her belief that the choice should always reside with the
worman and her doctor.

She urged the commttee to take tine to consider the vul nerable
people in this state who are often overl ooked because of their
| ocation, econom c status, or cultural background. Voting for SB
49 inposes personal opinions on the right of Al askan wonen to
care for their own reproductive health.

5:25:02 PM

WLLIAM COX, MD., representing hinself, said he has been a
radi ol ogi st for many years and he opposes SB 49. He recalled the
mandat ory ul trasound debacl e |ast session and observed that this
bill appears to be a continuation of the attenpts to restrict
abortion. The difference here is that SB 49 would only target
the poor. He offered his belief that the state should continue
to maintain general oversight of nedical practice, but nobody

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 11, 2013



out si de the physician/patient relationship should determ ne what
is nedically necessary.

DR. COX cautioned the conmmittee to view with healthy skepticism
the recent testinony that abortion <can sonehow lead to
depression. He enphasized that while postpartum depression is
grounded in science and wuniversally accepted by the nedical
comunity, it has nothing to do wth whether the woman wanted
the baby or not. Furthernore, wonen who becone pregnant
certainly wouldn't be urged to have an abortion to avoid
post part um depr essi on.

DR. COX suggested that to decrease the nunber of abortions
overall, the commttee should support nedically accurate and
age-appropriate education, uni ver sal no- copay contraceptive
coverage, and over-the-counter norning after pills.

5:28:43 PM

LYNETTE PHILLIPS, representing herself, stated support for SB
49. She offered her belief that Medicaid should only cover
nmedi cal |y necessary abortions, except in the case of rape and
incest. Taxpayers should not be financially responsible for
el ective abortions. She characterized SB 49 as reasonable
| egi sl ation, and opined that adoption is a viable alternative.

5:29:58 PM

AMY WALKER, representing herself, testified in support of SB 49.
She said she opposes abortion at any tine because the right to
life is the first inalienable right. Furthernore, taxpayers
shoul d not have to pay for others' irresponsible, wong choices.
She agreed that wonen should be able to make choi ces concerning
their own bodies, but pointed out that a baby is not part of the
nother's body. It is a separate and uni que person. She asked the
committee to renove the exception for rape and incest because
t hese babies should not be held responsible for the father's
crime. Her preference is to have no abortions at all, but if
there is acconmodation for nedical necessity, the nother's life
should truly be at ri sk.

5:32:13 PM

CAREN ROBI NSON, Lobbyist, Alaska Wnen's Lobby (AW), explained
that AW. is a statew de organization dedicated to advancing the
rights of wonen, children, and famlies. The organization does
not support SB 49 in general and specifically opposes limting
the definition of "nedically necessary”" to exclude nental
illness. AW believes that all wonen have the right to control
their reproduction and that doctors should decide when an

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 11, 2013



abortion is necessary. Doctors should be free to use their
medi cal judgnent based on the consideration of all factors. AW
further believes that the Suprene Court was right to broadly
define "nedically necessary" to allow the attending physician
the | atitude necessary to nmake the best nedical judgnent.

M5. ROBI NSON requested the conmttee hold SB 49 and give the new
DHSS regul ati ons governing when the state Medicaid program pays
for abortions a chance to work. DHSS spent a great deal of tinme
and effort on these «clarifications and they were only
i npl enmented in January 2013. She also suggested the conmttee
ask the conm ssioner about the wonen's health Medicaid options,
because studies show that these have the potential to bring
abortion rates down substantially.

5:35: 09 PM
SENATOR DYSON asked what she considers an el ective abortion.

M5. ROBI NSON said she wasn't nedically qualified to answer.

SENATOR DYSON clarified that he was talking about situations
t hat are not nedi cal

M5. ROBINSON responded that the perception of what is elective
may change once all the circunstances are understood.

5:36: 10 PM

LANCE ROBERTS, representing hinself, urged the conmmttee to nove
SB 49 forward and provide a good definition for "nedically
necessary" rather than the w shy-washy reasons that are being
used. He maintained that it 1is incunbent upon governnment to
devel op good definitions and enphasized that there certainly
should not be a program that spends a |ot of taxpayer noney to

kill babies for purely elective reasons. It is a sad commentary
on society that it happens at all, he said.
5:38: 02 PM

DI ANA CO\WAY, representing herself, pointed out that the
sponsor's aide, Chad Hutchinson, said the sole purpose of the
bill is to bring the state into conpliance with federal Medicaid
rules, not to do away with abortion. However, after listening to
all three public hearings she concluded that is not true. In
fact, there has been no evidence that the federal governnent has
ordered the state to provide a statutory definition for
medi cally necessary abortion. She observed that alnost all the
testimony in support of the bill was offered by people who
oppose abortion in general, and she believes those people would

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 11, 2013



rightly scream tyranny if the law forced them to have an
abortion. It is therefore reasonable to call tyranny any attenpt
agai nst the established right of wonen to choose abortion for
t hensel ves. She pointed out that Al aska statutes do not define
"medi cal |y necessary" for procedures on backs, knees, and hearts
when Medicaid is paying and the sane rule should apply for
abortion. She urged the commttee not to pass SB 49.

CHAIR COGHILL clarified that the Suprene Court said that states
should only pay for nedically necessary abortions, but did not
provide the criteria. The purpose of SB 49 is to help define
what is elective.

5:41: 00 PM

KATE FINN, representing herself, said she has been a nurse in
this state for 36 years, working primarily in public health and
wonen's health. For five years she worked as a sexual assault
nurse examner in Honmer. She noted that SB 49 provides an
exception for rape and incest, but it does not say who decides
if the sexual event was rape or incest. If the bill doesn't
define who makes this inportant decision, she didn't understand
how it could be included in the bill.

M5. FINN said the nedical profession generally acknow edges that
the condition of the physical body is not the only thing that
matters when considering nedically necessary interventions.
Ment al , enot i onal , and soci al considerations are highly
influential and necessary in determning a person's nedical
status and outconme. Thus, restricting Medicaid funds to only
physical risk and life of the nother ignores a huge portion of
what matters in literally and figuratively saving a life.

M5. FINN pointed out that nmany psychotropic nedications are
teratogenic and should never be used during pregnancy, but may
be the only nedication that stabilizes the synptons. She
enphasi zed that a wonman needs to be given the choice of whether
or not to carry a pregnancy to term under these conditions.
O her nmental and enotional conditions can also be severely
affected by a pregnancy and the postpartum period. To limt
nedi cally necessary solely to physical conditions runs contrary
to how nedi cal care decisions are nade.

M5. FINN said she honors the belief systemthat the bill appears
to cone from and would ask the sponsor to honor the personal
belief systens of others. She cautioned not to discount the
physical, enotional, nental, and spiritual life circunstances
that bring a woman to the noment of having to make such a

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- March 11, 2013



nonmentous life-livelong decision about whether or not to seek an
abortion.

5:46: 34 PM

CHAIR COGHILL said there are well-defined statutory definitions
for rape and, according to the testinony, |ess than four percent
of Medicaid abortions fall into that category.

5.:47. 23 PM

KAREN LEW S, representing herself, characterized the Roe v. \Wde
decision as legislated imorality that has resulted in nore than
55 mllion children being murdered in the wonb. She nmaintained
that using tax dollars for the procedure makes taxpayers
accessory to nurder. She agreed with earlier testinony that
wonen should be responsible for their reproductive capability,
and stated that it wasn't rocket science to keep from getting
pregnant. It was a matter of being aware of what one was doing.
She thanked the committee for bringing the legislation forward
and expressed appreciation to the legislators who continue to
fight for righteousness and what is right. She knows for a fact
that it isn't right to kill children in the wonb.

5:49: 23 PM

DYLAN ROBERTSON, representing hinmself, said he supports SB 49
first as a stewardship issue. Wth so many budgetary struggl es,
it makes sense to think carefully about what should and should
not be paid for by [Medicaid]. He said his second point is that
abortion can have a profound effect on both the man and wonan.
He described his friend's experience being part of three
abortions when he woul d have preferred to raise the kids.

5:52: 55 PM

PAI GE HODSON, representing herself, said she lives in Anchorage
and has been a court-appointed special advocate for children and
a volunteer at the intermssion crisis center that Senator
McCGuire nentioned earlier. She stated that her own famly story
vividly underlines why wonen and their doctors nust be given the
|atitude to make decisions about their own |ives, health, and
famlies. She related that when her very poor, exhausted, and
depressed nother |earned she was pregnant with her fifth child
she col | apsed and was hospitalized with suicidal ideations. Safe
and | egal abortion was not available and the pregnancy
continued. Something went wong during childbirth and the doctor
told her to choose which |ife to save. Her nother chose the
baby, but thankfully both survived. M. Hodson said she was that
fifth baby and she would have gladly exchanged her life for her
not her's. Nobody knows what would have happened to her four

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 11, 2013



young siblings if their nother had died in childbirth, but the
bottom line is that it was her decision to nake. Wnen's nenta

and physical health is too conplex to be set in a predeterm ned
list that politicians have deened nedically necessary. She urged
the commttee to nove on to nore inportant state business and
stop trying to mcromanage wonen's |ives. Alaska courts have
consistently held that wonen have a fundanental right to privacy
and that there can be no discrimnation in nedical decisions

The continued effort to undermne the rights of poor wonen is
particul arly unnerving, because they are less likely to have the
ability to fight for their rights.

M5. HODSON concluded that the reality is that nore lives will be
saved by fully funding famly planning and health care services
for all Al askans than by trying to deprive wonmen of their right
to control their own lives and bodi es.

5:56:17 PM

ED GOANS, representing hinself, said he lives in Soldotna and is
a front street prolife supporter as opposed to a back-alley
taker of innocent life. He said it's apparent that abortion is
treated as big business by pro-abortion advocates. However, this
bi g busi ness shoul d not be supported by Al aska taxpayers.

Those who oppose SB 49 have nmade reference to how safe they feel
with access to state-paid elective abortion, but the babies in
the wonb are not so safe. Pro-abortion advocates confuse the

issue of abortion with mcromnaging wonen's lives, but it's
really about saving innocent lives. People who are opposed to
the bill believe that nmentally challenged people should not be

deni ed Medicaid funded abortions, but he is very thankful that
his nentally challenged nother-in-law did not abort his wife. He
cited one of his favorite books:

For you fornmed ny inward parts; you covered nme in ny
nother's wonb. | wll praise you for | am fearfully
and wonderfully made. Marvelous are your works, and
that my soul knows very well.

VR. GOANS offered his belief that elective abortion is
carelessly casting aside God's masterful handiwork. He also
expressed appreciation for Senator MCQuire's conmments on
adoption, and said he prays that the right decisions are nmade
with regard to SB 49.

5:59:32 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 11, 2013



RAMONA DUBY, representing herself, said she opposes SB 49 but
appreci ates Senator Mc@iire's comments and hopes there can be a
connection between adoption and the foster care system She

characterized the bill as an effort to save nobney and expressed
hope that it doesn't actually add to the nunbers of those who
are already experiencing nental illness and receiving services.
She observed that a lot of faith-based issues entered into this
bill and she would prefer to see less of that particul ar focus.

6: 03: 02 PM

JEFFREY M TTMAN, Executive Director, ACLU of Al aska, said he was
avai l able to answer questions, and rem nded the conmttee that
the ACLU had submitted both witten and oral testinony opposing
SB 49.

6: 03: 49 PM

PAT MARTIN, representing hinself, said it's been interesting
hearing the varied testinmony on SB 49, and it appears to cone
dowmn to the fact that poverty and inconveni ence should never be
the basis for nedical necessity, particularly when considering
the termnation of a life. It doesn't matter whether one
believes that life begins at birth or at conception; either way
it's alife. He stated support for SB 49 and thanked the sponsor
for introducing it.

6: 06: 09 PM

COLLEEN MJURPHY, M D., representing herself, said she is a board
certified obstetrician/gynecol ogist and abortion provider. She
read the followi ng definition into the record:

Medi cal necessity is a United States |egal doctrine
related to activities which may be justified as
reasonabl e, necessary, and/or appropriate based on
evi dence- based clinical standards of care.

DR. MJURPHY also cited the Ammesty International description of
mat ernal health in the United States:

It's nore dangerous to give birth in the United States
than in 49 other countries. African-Anerican wonmen are
at alnost four times greater risk [of dying] than
Caucasi an wonren. A safe pregnancy is a human right for
every woman regardl ess of race or incone.

Maternal nortality ratios have increased from 6.6

deat hs per 100,000 live births in 1987 to 13.3 deaths
per 100,000 live births in 2006. Wile sone of the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 11, 2013



recorded increase is due to inproved data collection
the fact remmins that maternal nortality ratios have
risen significantly.

The USA spends nore than any other country on health
care, and nore on maternal health than any other type
of hospital care. Despite this, wonen in the USA have
a  higher risk of dyi ng of pregnancy-rel at ed
conplications than those in 49 other countries,
i ncludi ng Kuwai t, Bul garia, and South Kor ea.

African-Anerican wonen are nearly four tines nore
likely to die of pregnancy-related conplications than
white wonen. These rates and disparities have not
i mproved in nore than 20 years.

Maternal deaths are only the tip of the iceberg.
During 2004 and 2005, nore than 68,000 wonen nearly
died in childbirth in the USA. Each year, 1.7 mllion
wonen suffer a conplication that has an adverse effect
on their health.

This is not just a public health energency - it is a
human rights crisis. Wnen in the USA face a range of
obstacles in obtaining the services they need. The
health care system suffers from nultiple failures:

discrimnation, financial, bureaucratic and |anguage
barriers [to care, lack of information about materna
care and famly planning options, lack of active
participation in care decisions, inadequate staffing

and quality protocols, and a l|lack of accountability
and oversight.]

DR. MJURPHY al so shared an overview of maternal nortality in the
U.S. and the conparative safety of legal, induced abortion to
childbirth in the U S

Mat ernal nortality:

Three percent of maternal deaths occurred after a
spont aneous or induced abortion. Four percent occurred
after ectopic pregnancies. Fifteen percent occurred
prior to delivery and 77 percent occur after delivery.

The Green Journal: Obstetrics and Gynecol ogy February
2012:

W estimate nortality rates associated wth live
births and legally induced abortions in the United

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 11, 2013



States in 1998 to 2005. W used data from the Centers

for D sease Cont r ol and Preventi on, Pr egnancy
Mortality Surveillance System birth certificates, and
the Quttmacher Institute surveys. In addition, they

searched the population based data during the
nmorbidity of abortion and childbirth.

The pregnancy associated nortality rate anong wonen
who delivered live births was 8.8 deaths per 100,000
live births. The nortality rate related to induced
abortions was 0.6 deaths. The |egal induced abortion
is markedly safer than childbirth. The risk of death
associated with child birth is approximately 14 tines
hi gher than that with abortion.

DR. MJURPHY said if there is a 14 tines higher rate of death from
giving birth conpared to having an abortion, the state should be
provi ding abortion services to wonen under the state Medicaid
care system

CHAI R COGHI LL asked Dr. Murphy to send the statistical review to
his office.

6:11: 36 PM

ALBERT JUDSON, representing hinself, said he was speaking in
support of SB 49. He is an Alaska Native fromthe Tlingit Tribe,
a qualified chem cal dependency counselor, a Christian, and very
prolife. He related his personal story of being so small at
birth he wore doll's clothing and was fed with an eyedropper. He
mused that in nodern tinmes he may have been aborted. He cited
sone statistics. In 2011, 623 abortions were performed in Al aska
and the cunmulative cost ranged from $436,000 to $623, 000.
Nati onw de, about 1.1 mllion abortions are perfornmed every
year. He said this is big business.

MR. JUDSON discussed declining federal funds and opined that
Medi caid funded abortions should be kept to a mnimum He
reiterated support for SB 49 and his belief that Medicaid should
only pay for an abortion in the case of rape, incest, or
nmedi cally necessary reasons. He relayed that because of his
belief inlife it was a nmpjor conprom se to agree to any kind of
abortion; adoption is a nuch better alternative.

6:17: 09 PM

JOYANNE BLOOM representing herself, said she was speaking in
opposition to SB 49, but wanted to conplinent the commttee for
actually listening to the testinony and being open to what was

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 11, 2013



said. She pointed out that she and the committee nenbers were
all advantaged and had the neans to make their own choices, and
clarified that she was speaking for the disadvantaged that do
not have the nmeans to nmke their own choices. Since the Al aska
Constitution promses that all people are treated equally, she
asked the conmttee to support that promse and naintain the
means for the di sadvantaged to nmake choi ces.

6:19: 20 PM

DOUG MCKINNI'S, representing hinself, said he was from Wasilla and was
speaking in support of this excellent legislation. SB 49 is not about
whet her or not a wonman can get an abortion; it is about who pays to

kill wunborn children in certain circunstances. He urged the conmttee
to stay focused on that. He highlighted that Medicaid pays for
nmedi cal |y necessary procedures and the bill recognizes that it should

only cover nedically necessary abortions. This is in line with the
policies of Medicaid, which does not pay for elective procedures. He
warned the committee to look with skepticism at the data from Ammesty
International, because nobody in their right mnd would believe that
the U.S. is a dangerous place for pregnant wonen to live. Rather, it's
the unborn child in the US. that faces danger. Since 1973 nore than
50 million children have been killed. That is the real tragedy.

MR. MCKINNIS offered his belief that the people who oppose SB 49 are
focused on the noney they will lose if it passes, but they are not
concerned about the free choice of the people who do not want to pay
for abortions.

6:22:11 PM

KATHLEEN TONN, representing herself, said she is from Anchorage
and she represents three parties: Jehovah - The God Al m ghty,
the Holy Bible, and the unborn. The testinony thus far has cone
from three perspectives: the spiritual, the intellect, and the
enotional. She cited GCenesis Chapter 1 Verse 27 as the
definitive word of God and the absolute authority on the issue
of human |ife:

So God created mankind in his own image, in the inage
of God he created themm nmale and female he created
t hem

M5. TONN said life comes from God and dissolution of |life cones
through the venue of mscarriage, not abortion. As a taxpayer
and Al aska resident for nore than 32 years, she does not want
anybody's noney wused for elective abortions. She related
personal stories about abortion, adoption, and pregnancy that
resulted from rape, and promsed to pray that the bill passes
and for two of the testifiers today.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 15- March 11, 2013



6: 26: 45 PM
JODIE DOM NGUEZ, representing herself, said she lives in
Anchorage and is testifying to encourage a no vote on SB 49. She

expl ai ned that she opposes the bill because she pronm sed herself
and others that when she goes to the ballot box she wll
consi der how her vote will affect the everyday lives of others.

That said, she questioned how voting yes on SB 49 would help the
everyday lives of people in this society. She pointed out that
an unpl anned pregnancy definitely affects the woman for the rest
of her life, and a child who is unplanned may spend his/her life
feeling wunconfortable and an inconvenience. She wurged the
committee to focus on a society with happier lives with planned
pregnanci es, and to separate the church fromthe state.

6: 29: 39 PM

KI NDEE LESLIE, representing herself, said she lives in Fairbanks
and is in favor of SB 49. She said that she appreciates that the
committee is taking the time to define "nedically necessary" in
statute. This wll <clarify when Medicaid wll pay for an
abortion and help to steward tax dollars. She offered her belief
that if a procedure is not nedically necessary then it is
optional and public noney should not be used to pay for optional
procedures. Although she understands that wonmen want the right
to choose, they ought to be required to pay for their choices.
She wurged the commttee to nove cautiously with regard to
i ncluding nental health issues as a nedically necessary
condi tion, because the governnent does not have the right to say
who is worthy to reproduce or who neets the financial or nenta
standard to have <children. She suggested focusing nore on
prevention rather than the consequences of poor choices. She
inplored the commttee to continue working for what is right for
Al askans.

6: 33: 06 PM

ALICIA MJSI AL, representing herself, said she is a |ow inconeg,
22-year-old nother of two who supports SB 49. She offered her
belief that depression, poverty, inconvenience, and wanting
control of one's reproduction are not nedically necessary
reasons for abortion. Furthernore, rape isn't a valid reason for
an abortion, because children conceived by rape are no |ess
wort hy than babies conceived in other conditions. She concl uded
that an unwanted pregnancy should not qualify as a nedically
needed abortion and should not be paid for by Al askan tax
dol | ars.

6:34:43 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- March 11, 2013



KEI TH KURBER, representing hinself, said he lives in Fairbanks
and is speaking in favor of SB 49, because the issue of choice
resides with both the nother and the person who is the result of
the pregnancy. He voiced support for the idea that the nunber
one issue is life and getting the chance to have one. He
enphasized that it is absolutely wthin the legislature's
purview to craft laws that affect the freedons of the people of
t he state.

6:37: 56 PM

JESSE ROSS, representing hinself, said he is a Juneau resident
and is wholeheartedly in support of SB 49 to provide a
definition [for medically necessary]. The issue isn't about who
decides or wonmen's rights; it's about whether the people of
Al aska want to pay for abortions. He, for one, does not want
that and he doesn't believe that the responsible people of
Al aska should have to pay for the irresponsible actions and
choices of others. He urged the commttee to nove the bil
forward

6:40: 11 PM

PETER NOX, representing hinself, said he is <calling from
Anchorage to voice support for SB 49, which proposes to stemthe
use of tax dollars to fund purely elective abortions. He noted
that some have said that politicians should stay out of the
doctor's office, and he would point out that by that |ogic tax
dol l ars should al so be kept out of the doctor's office. However,
since tax dollars are involved in nedicine, he applauds the
politicians who are taking steps to ensure that the state is not
fundi ng purely elective abortions.

6:41: 14 PM

JAN DELAND, Operation Qutcry, Anchorage, said she supports
clarifying what is a nedically necessary abortion and believes
the definition should be narrowed to include only soneone who is
facing the immnent loss of their physical life. She explained
that Operation Qutcry adm nisters to women who have been injured
by abortion and she is testifying to dispel the notion that
abortion is safe. She described her enotional devastation to
learn that the doctor who perforned her D&C procedure also
performed abortions. She warned that the abortion providers who
testified have a profit notive and supplied bogus facts. She
offered her belief that abortion is dangerous, devastating to
the purpose and gifting of wonen, causes breast cancer, and
causes psychological harm She said she wants to stand up for
wonen, children, and anyone who is at a disadvantage because
they aren't being told the whole truth. Furthernore, she would

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- March 11, 2013



like the exceptions for rape and incest to be renoved from the
bill. The crimnal should be punished, not the nother or baby.

6: 46: 33 PM

DEBRA BORLLI NI, representing herself, stated support for SB 49.
She described being hospitalized with serious conplications from
asthma and getting advice from an on-call physician to seriously
consider term nating her pregnancy. She did not heed the advice
and delivered a healthy baby boy. She said she would like to
believe that the on-call doctor would have chosen life if he had
had access to her entire health record. Providing a definition

for "nmedically necessary” will ensure that no other child s life
will be subjected to an unnecessary aborti on.
6:49:19 PM

PAMELA MARSCH, representing herself, said she lives in Anchorage
and woul d recommend wi thdrawi ng SB 49 because it seeks to define
something that is truly between a woman and her doctor. She
described having a very difficult pregnancy and delivery and
questioned whether she would have survived if she hadn't had a
very good support system Not all wonmen are that fortunate, so
it is inappropriate to think that it is anyone other than the
woman's right to decide what to do with her pregnancy.

6:51: 14 PM

DEE LONGENBAUGH, representing herself, said she was urging a no
vote on SB 49 for a nunber of reasons. First, nen are naking
deci si ons about what wonen can or cannot do. Second, the talk
from Anchorage about not wusing taxpayer noney is interesting
because Anchorage doesn't have any taxes. Third, it truly is the
case that some famlies couldn't afford to have another child.
Finally, this talk is remniscent of the Reagan adm nistration
They cared deeply about the child from conception to birth, but
there wasn't much realistic talk about what happens to unwanted
children. She reiterated that she was urging a no vote on SB 49.

6: 54: 06 PM
CHAIR COGHILL closed public testinmony on SB 49 and announced he woul d
hold SB 49 for further consideration.

6: 54: 42 PM
There being no further business to cone before the committee, Chair
Coghi |l adjourned the Senate Judiciary Standing Comrittee neeting
at 6:54 p.m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- March 11, 2013



